
ICfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

AnnuAl RepoRt
&  Financial Statements 

For the year ended 
31 December 2012



II CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012



Contents

Chapter page

Company Information 1

Chairman’s Statement 3

Directors’ Report 9

Corporate Governance Statement 13

Corporate Social Responsibility 25

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 29

Report of the Consulting Actuary 33

Report of the Independent Auditor 37

Financial Reports 41

  - Income Statement 43

  - Statement of comprehensive income  44

  - Statement of financial position 45

  - Statement of changes in equity 47 

  - Statement of cash flows  49

  - Notes to the Financial Statements 51

Supplementary Information 91



IV CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012



1CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

CfC Life Assurance Limited (the “Company”) operates in eight towns and cities across Kenya with approximately 

400 agents and over 140 employees. The Company has provided insurance services to the nation since 1964 and 

continues to offer a range of attractive life and pension products. 

CfC Life is a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty Kenya Holdings Limited (LKHL), which is a public listed company 

on the Nairobi Securities Exchange. The insurance businesses in Uganda, Liberty Life Assurance, and in Tanzania, 

Heritage and Strategis also form part of the Group. Liberty Holdings (SA) in part of Standard Bank Group, the 

largest financial services Group in Africa.

Our Group Vision

•	 Be the market leading wealth management Company in Africa while entering growth markets which allow us 

to use our points of difference to make a meaningful contribution to the group.

•	 We are a customer focused organisation with a united, passionate and skilled workforce.

•	 We have the foresight to respond to changing consumer needs through innovative solutions and technologically 

efficient processes.

Our Group Values

1. Be passionate about our work and utilise our talents to add value. 

2. Take initiative and responsibility.

3. Respect and appreciate constructive criticism and the opinion of others. 

4. Focus on set goals and deadlines. 

5. Be proud ambassadors of our company and Group

6. Put our customers at the centre of our thinking and serve them with diligence. 

7. Encourage teamwork, respect and trust for one another. 

8. Take ownership for the consequences of our actions. 

9. Perform our duties with care, integrity and honesty. 

10. Deliver beyond expectation. 

11. Constantly improve our skills and knowledge. 

Objectives

1. To encourage all employees and agents to exercise their skills and creativity in providing added value to 

customers, business partners and shareholders.

2. To develop and deliver superior products and services.

3. To maintain a cost effective and efficient operation responsive to technological and market changes.

4. To select and develop employees and agents dedicated to acting with integrity at all times and committed to 

maintaining the highest standards of professionalism.

ComPANy INFoRmATIoN
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I am pleased to present to you the annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Business environment

The country experienced modest economic growth rate of 4.6% in the year, a marginal improvement from 4.4% 

in 2011. A slowdown in the global economy, particularly the exogenous effects arising out of the Euro-zone crisis 

continued to weigh down on tourism and horticulture exports, the two sectors for which Europe is a key source 

market. Economic activity was also negatively affected by high oil and food prices, jitters about the impending 

election, unfavourable weather conditions and the trade balance position following the significant trade deficit 

in 2011. The shilling was relatively stable for most of the year, kept afloat by the monetary policies of the Central 

Bank, as it intervened consistently to shore up the currency in order to avoid a repeat of the 2011 scenario.

Although we have recently begun to see a further depreciation of the currency, the Central Bank has been active 

in the market to stem any significant drop. The shilling traded in a narrow range of Shs 83 - 86 to 1 USD throughout 

the year. Inflation trended downwards during the year to a low of 3.25% in November, down from 18.3% at the 

beginning of the year, mainly because of the tight monetary policy that was practiced by the Central Bank. The 

Bank held the CBR at 18% in the first half of the year, which was meant to curb demand driven inflationary 

pressures through reducing the rate of credit growth to the private sector. Lower food and transport inflation 

during the year also had a positive effect on headline inflation as supply side factors continued to abate. Similarly, 

the weaker demand for oil in the international markets, mainly due to the slowdown in China and the Euro zone, 

had the impact of lowering the domestic fuel prices, thus lightening upward pressure on inflation.

The key indicative market interest rates declined gradually in the year, in line with falling inflation and the 

improved currency liquidity as would be expected. The 91-day Treasury Bill indicative rate declined from a high 

of about 18% to a low of 8% in December, and in the second half of the year the CBK reduced the CBR by 7 

percentage points to a low of 11% in November. Consequently Commercial Banks are expected to continue to 

adjust their lending rates downwards, albeit at a slower pace. The year was also challenging for the bond market 

given the high volatility in the interest rates on the back of the tight monetary policy adopted by the Central Bank. 

There was a general decline in the yields driven mostly by investor expectations of lower inflation and the easing 

of monetary policy. 

The yield curve corrected significantly during the year as compared to the previous year. As a result, bond portfolio 

valuations have recovered from the losses experienced in 2011. The stock market was fairly active and the Nairobi 

Securities Exchange index (NSE 20) increased from a low of 3,220 in January to close the year at 4,133, a growth 

of 28%. This rally was buoyed by a blend of domestic and global factors. on the domestic front, monetary policy 

easing in response to lower inflationary pressures, exchange rate stability and the declining interest rates gave 

much needed impetus to the stock market. 

Company performance

The operating environment for the Company improved significantly from the previous year after instituting a 

number of changes meant to improve our operations and the quality of business written. Some of the changes 

involved the implementation of non-cash business in order to improve premium collection and policy persistency. 

These changes initially had a negative impact on new business, reducing production by an estimated 15%, although 

going forward we expect that new business written will be more sustainable and hence more profitable. The 

environment has now stabilized and we are focusing more on our growth initiatives. As part of these initiatives 

we expect to introduce at least 2 new products in the year and intensify our efforts to grow profitably in non-

traditional market segments.

CHAIRmAN’S STATEmENT
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I wish to note that despite the changes referred to above, the Company registered good performance with an 

increase in gross written premium of 13.6%. Pension fund contributions however remained flat, a fact attributed 

mainly to few genuine new schemes in the market, with most new business being acquired from competitors. 

We have sought to enhance our customer value proposition in order to improve persistency and the acquisition 

of new business. 

The group risk line performed very well, showing strong premium growth of 87% during the year. This is a 

testament to the good support we are receiving from brokers as a result of our revised broker strategy. Even 

though we had a favourable claims experience, sustained profitability of this line of business is of concern because 

much of the competitive pressure is focused on rating, resulting in uneconomic pricing. 

We will continue with sound underwriting practices and avoid the common market practice of competing on rates 

alone. As already mentioned the Company will focus on growing in the non-traditional areas where the pricing 

pressures are less and the value proposition is clearer. Areas such as bancassurance and affinity business present 

us with good opportunities that we must pursue for faster growth. It is our intention to leverage on Liberty’s 

experience elsewhere in the continent to put together a superior product offering for these target markets.   

Investment income improved markedly by 84% to Shs 1.87b (Shs 1.02b in 2011) as the company was able to 

capitalize on the relatively high market yields, and the growth of the stock market, where it took profit on counters 

with significant upside. As a result of this positive performance our total revenue rose by 39.8% to Shs 3.27b from 

Shs2.34b in 2011. our expense base, even though high relative to the level of business, was contained at prior 

year levels as a result of the measures instituted to cut costs. We will continue with these measures in the coming 

year to further cut down on expenditure in non-essential areas and to enhance the level of automation in the 

Company for improved operational efficiency. 

The Company registered a net profit of Shs 331m compared to Shs 315m in 2011. our total assets grew to Shs 18.1b 

from Shs 13.4b in 2011. This growth can be attributed to the increase in the value of our invested assets and the 

transfer of long-term portfolio from Heritage in line with the group policy of separating the composite companies. 

Given this relatively good performance the statutory solvency position for the company improved significantly in 

2012 and is now at a healthy multiple of 2.25 times the minimum specified by the Insurance Act. 

The statutory solvency margin is the bare minimum that an insurance company must hold but given the extent of 

market movements experienced over the past few years, we believe it is prudent to hold a higher level of capital 

as this gives comfort to our existing and potential customers that we are adequately capitalized to weather the 

market volatilities, and that we will be around to honour our promises. In an uncertain world where markets 

move unpredictably, often at frightening speed, this is a strong value proposition to our stakeholders.   

Business outlook

At the time of writing this statement, the prospects for 2013 appears to be good despite the looming elections. 

The improved macro-economic fundamentals in 2012 should continue into 2013 unless there are disruptions due 

to political activities. Nonetheless, the pace of private sector spending could be affected by the wait and see 

attitude as corporations delay rolling out their growth and expansion plans. otherwise, assuming credible and 

peaceful elections heightened economic activity is expected to resume in the second half of 2013.

The Stock market which is a leading economic indicator has started the year with an unexpected rally that has 

driven the Nairobi Securities Exchange NSE 20 index to 4,648 in February from 4,133 at end of 2012. Inflation and 

market rates are expected to remain stable which should augur well for an increased rate of economic growth. 

CHAIRmAN’S STATEmENT
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The shilling is similarly expected to remain stable but with a bias to weakness if market rates continue to fall, 

however the Central Bank of Kenya will most likely maintain its monetary policy of stabilizing the shilling during 

instances of devaluation pressure. 

The inflationary pressures have largely abated and inflation seems to have bottomed out at current levels and is 

not expected to increase much in 2013. It is thus predicted that the economy should grow at an average of about 

4% in the coming financial year. We remain hopeful that the elections will go well with no disruptions to our 

business. In the meantime we have positioned ourselves for better growth in 2013, having finalized most of the 

fixes that we needed to carry out in the Company. 

This growth will not be possible, however, without the introduction of new products. We have recently launched 

one new product, the msiba Plan, which is being received well by the market. We expect to launch at least two 

other new products during the year. They will all be designed to meet the ever changing needs of our market-

place. As part of our concerted growth strategy we will enhance our customer service proposition to encourage 

valued customers to stay longer with us. 

In addition to our agency distribution network we will continue to build relationships with banks in order to 

grow our bancassurance book as this will remain a major growth area for the Company. Similarly our market 

share in the area of group risk is still very low, a fact that presents us with a massive opportunity to grow in this 

line of business. We will therefore continue to leverage our improving broker relations to acquire new schemes 

but I should like to mention that a leapfrog growth in future for group risks will largely depend on our ability 

to leverage the non-traditional distribution channels, particularly where we partner with other organizations to 

provide cover to their client base. 

The market continues to evolve and the wide usage of technology such as mobile telephony and the internet 

presents us with massive opportunities to distribute our products using such media. We are exploring ways in 

which we can effectively leverage such technology to expand our distribution capabilities.    

Acknowledgements

I wish to thank my fellow directors for their continued support and commitment to the company, and extend a 

warm welcome to our new director. I also wish to thank our staff and agents for their hard work and commitment 

to the organisation in spite of all the challenges we faced during the year.

Finally, I lift my hat for the thousands of clients who continue to support our business so loyally. I wish to assure 

them that our commitment to provide them with unparalleled service and a wider and richer range of products 

remains stronger than ever as we journey into 2013. 

P N Gethi - Chairman

21 February 2013
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2012 which disclose the state of affairs of CfC Life Assurance Ltd (the “Company”).

Principal activities

The Company underwrites all classes of life insurance as defined in the Insurance Act. It also issues investment 

contracts to provide customers with asset management solutions for their savings and retirement needs. 

During the year, Liberty Kenya Holdings Limited reorganized its insurance business to enable the respective 

subsidiaries align themselves to the guidelines issued by the Insurance Regulatory Authority (IRA). The 

reorganization entailed the Heritage Insurance Company (K) Limited transferring its long term business to CfC 

Life Assurance Ltd. 

Results and dividend

Profit for the year of Shs 331,030,000 (2011: Shs 315,420,000) has been added to retained earnings.  During the 

year, no interim dividend (2011: 300 million) was paid. 

The directors recommend the approval of Shs 100m final dividend to be paid from surplus fund (2011: Nil).

Directors

The names of the Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 2. 

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all directors retire and being eligible, offer themselves 

for re-election.

Auditor

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, continues in office in accordance with Section 159(2) of the 

Companies Act. 

By order of the Board

Caroline Kioni 

Company Secretary

 21 February 2013

DIRECToR’S REPoRT
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The Directors are committed to the principles of good corporate governance and recognise the need to govern 

the business with integrity and accountability at all times and to all stakeholders. The Board prescribes to the 

Commonwealth Association of Corporate Governance principles and has adopted the 15 recommended guidelines 

and associated best practice codes. 

Corporate governance is essentially about quality leadership:

a) Leadership for efficiency – improves competitiveness and creates jobs

b) Leadership for probity – provides investor confidence on management integrity

c) Leadership with responsibility – incorporates issues compatible with societal objectives and legitimate social 

concerns

d) Leadership that is transparent and accountable

All these affect the livelihood and quality of life of a country’s citizens. The Directors’ exercise stewardship of 

the Company’s total portfolio of assets and resources with the main objective of maintaining  and increasing 

shareholder value and satisfying other stakeholders in the context of its corporate mission. They are concerned 

with creating a balance between economic and social goals and between individual and communal goals while 

encouraging efficient use of resources, accountability in the use of power and stewardship and as far as possible 

the alignment of interests of individuals, corporations and society. 

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of one executive and six non-executive Directors who have been chosen for their 

business acumen and wide range of skills and experience. The Board is chaired by a non-executive Director and 

met during the year as shown in the table below:

 DIRECToR 8 mar 2012 14 Jun 2012 5 Sep 2012 22 Nov 2012

Peter Gethi (Chairman) 

Abel munda (managing Director)

Gayling may

John milne

michael L du Toit Apologies

Stuart Wenman

Sonal Sejpal By Invitation

The Board has an appropriate mix of proficient Directors approved by the Insurance Regulatory Authority who 

are able to add value through independent judgement in the decision making process. Ultimately, the Board 

determines the Company’s purpose and values, strategic objectives and key policies and procedures in accordance 

with best practice. It monitors the implementation of such strategies, policies and overall Company performance 

through a structured approach of reporting by the executive management against approved business plans and 

budgets.

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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The Board has set up the following committees to assist it in fulfilling its stated objectives. The committees’ roles 

and responsibilities are set out in terms of agreed mandates, which are reviewed annually to ensure they remain 

relevant.

1) Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee, which has an approved mandate, is responsible for the monitoring of risk 

management, compliance and internal controls as established by the Board and executed by the management 

of the Company. The Committee consists of three non-executive Directors and met as follows during the year:

Director 17 Feb 2012 3 May 2012 2 aug 2012 28 aug 2012 30 Oct 2012

Gayling may - Chairman

michael L du Toit

Stuart Wenman

It regularly reviews the internal systems of control and effectiveness of financial and operational reporting through 

the establishment of an internal audit function and ensures the function is independent, adequately resourced 

and proficient in their duties. They also act as a liaison with the external auditors approving their scope of work, 

recommending their remuneration and reviewing their reports. 

The Audit and Risk Committee reports to the Board on a quarterly basis and continually evaluates the ability of 

the Company to continue as a going concern. The managing Director, Head of Finance, Head of Risk management 

and Head of Internal Audit regularly attend the Committee meetings to respond to any issues raised by the 

members.

2) Investment Committee

The Board has established an Investment Committee to monitor performance of the Company’s investment 

portfolio and to ensure that the appointed investment managers comply with the set benchmarks and performance 

standards. This Committee consists of three non-executive Directors and the managing Director. The Committee 

met in the year as follows:

Name of Director 15 Feb 12 2 May 12 16 May 12 7 Jun 12 1 aug 12 13 Nov 12

michael du Toit (Chairman)  apology

John milne

Abel munda

Stuart Wenman Via telecon Via telecon Via telecon

The Committee determines the overall investment strategy for the Company and monitors the performance of 

the fund managers in achieving the strategy. The company secretary attends the Committee meetings and acts 

as Secretary to the committee.

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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Internal control and risk management

The Company has prescribed an elaborate set of procedures and financial controls to ensure accurate reporting 

of financial information and protection of its assets. Such procedures include segregation of duties and defined 

approval levels. The objective is to ensure that the empowerment of the workforce is underpinned by a clearly 

communicated and understood suite of internal control devices (process maps, procedure manuals, underwriting 

and claims handling guidelines, appropriate business risk management guidelines and policies, documented 

authorities and compliance monitoring) hence entrenching the appropriate control culture.

Business ethics

All employees within the Company are required to sign the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Code sets out 

the Company’s commitment to ethical behaviour in the conduct of its business. Appropriate codes of conduct 

are driven by governance practice (code of ethics, corporate citizenship code etc.), statutory and regulatory 

requirements, service objectives (service level agreements, business protocols, business excellence models) and 

the corporate governance framework itself. 

Management and operational committees

For effective implementation of the strategic plan and operations, several management committees have been 

constituted. The members of these Committees are mainly the executive management team and business unit 

leaders. Their main areas of focus are:

•	 Development and implementation of the strategic plan and budgets

•	 monitoring of financial and operational performance of the Company in line with budgets and international 

standards

•	 Development, implementation and monitoring of Company risk management framework policies and 

procedures

•	 management and monitoring of key projects being undertaken

•	 Implementation and management of ICT projects.

•	 Product innovation and development.

These Committees report to the managing Director and form the basis of development of strategic objectives and 

performance management for the Company.

Corporate social investment (CSI)

CfC Life CSI approach aims at improving the living conditions of our employees and their families, our customers 

and the communities in which we operate, thereby creating a sense of employee satisfaction and customer 

loyalty. This is achieved by encompassing projects that are external to the normal business activities of CfC Life, 

and not directly for purposes of increasing company profit. The projects we undertake aim to have a strong 

developmental approach and utilize company resources to benefit and uplift communities, and are not primarily 

driven as marketing initiatives. 

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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A CSI policy has been approved by the Board with the following recommended criteria:

1) Strategic relevance – concerned primarily with education needs in the society.

2) proportional payback – expenses incurred or resources allocated are covered by the notional value of the 

benefit derived of ensuring customer loyalty and employee satisfaction.

3) Substance – sufficient to make a real, measurable impact on society

4) Sustainability – projects should be sustainable to ensure the impact is felt by the intended group

The Board carefully considers the impact of the Company’s products, services, operations and procedures, to 

ensure they balance the needs of all stakeholders especially shareholders, employees, our customers and the 

community at large. In the year, 46 high school students were sponsored with either partial or full scholarship, 

among whom were children of CfC Life workforce and children of parents who are policyholders.  

In August 2012 we brought all the children together for a two day mentorship event that saw them spend day one 

in the Head office interacting with staff members. They also got a motivational talk from Chief Executive officer 

of Nation media Group mr. Linus Gitahi and representatives from the ministry of Education. on day two, they 

participated in self discovery and coaching sessions aimed at making them well rounded members of the society, 

a session conducted by  the renown personal coach and trainer, and founder of Heshimika Initiative – mr. Joseph 

obwanda.

As part of our CSI initiatives, we also continue to partner with other institutions involved in various activities that 

are aimed at enhancing the welfare of the community. In 2012 we gave cash donation for two such activities; 

mater Heart Run- involved in providing financial support for treatment of cardiac ailments, and Loreto msongari- 

at the fundraising for prosthetic and reconstructive surgery for girls who survived a school bus tragic accident. 

In coming years, CfC Life CSR will continue enriching the educations needs in the society and truly leave a mark 

of excellence in the lives of the children that we sponsor, as we aim to make contribution to the Country’s vision 

2030. We have therefore put a structure in place that will enable the CSI team to engage with the children even 

more. Some of the endeavours will include visiting them in their respective schools, participating in career talk in 

their school as well as hosting some student at the head office in order to expose them to real working life, thus 

opening their horizons, and creating new possibilities for them. 

The Board has a fundamental responsibility to protect policyholder investments and provide value to shareholders. 

In order to do both, the Company must grow the business and make a profit. The Company’s success on these 

fronts can be measured by its financial performance as analysed overleaf:-

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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Value added statement

2012
Shs‘000

2011
Shs‘000

Change
Shs ‘000

% 
Change

Gross Earned Premium 1,513,455 1,390,706 122,749 9%

Net Earned Premium 1,328,435 1,262,362 66,073 5%

Investment Income 1,868,210 1,015,340 852,870 84%

Policyholder Benefits Payable 1,799,922 886,308 913,614 103%

Commissions Payable to Brokers and Agents 196,931 209,939 (13,008) (6%)

Salaries and Wages 373,978 380,844 (6,866) (2%)

Payment to Suppliers for Goods and Services 211,965 211,965 - -

Income tax expense 47,279 31,859 15,420 48%

profit after tax 331,030 315,420 15,610 5%

The Company has an impact on the greater economy through the funds it pays to policyholders, the salaries paid 

to its employees, the taxes paid to the government, the returns paid to shareholders and the donations made to 

society. From a sustainability point of view, the Company believes in engaging with its stakeholders as a critical 

means of identifying the most material issues facing the group and this in turn enables it manage those issues 

and minimize the potential impact on its performance and reputation. The following section details how the 

Company engaged with each group of stakeholders.

1. Customers

During the year 2012, the Company embarked on various strategies to deliver on the Customer Service Strategic Plan 

2010. Some of the milestones achieved in 2012 include the following; Re-structuring the Customer Service model to 

focus more on achieving customer loyalty through improved customer experiences. The Customer Experience team 

embarked on an ambitious service devolution program to all branches with the objective of taking service closer to 

customers and agents. This has improved our turnaround times and improved customer satisfaction.  

Customer Relationship management became a key focus in 2012. The objective was to bridge the communication 

gap that has been existing between customers and CfC Life. All customers now receive “Happy Birth day” messages 

through their mobile phones, including Christmas/New year messages. Customers also receive sms from CfC 

Life in cases where premiums are not received. The Customer Experience team is responsible for making sure 

customers receive all the necessary communication including timely statements. one of the major milestones 

was the implementation of the Queue management System (QmS) at CfC House. Customers have expressed 

satisfaction at the level of service at our Front office especially after the implementation of the QmS. 

There were major improvements in the operational efficiencies arising out of the process changes that we 

implemented in the year. This has resulted into faster processing of claims like Partial maturities and Policy Loans.

This has resulted to an improvement in policy Persistency of 70.4% from a low of 64% at the start of the year. 

Going forward, Customer Service will continue to work towards achieving improved customer loyalty and persistency 

through excellent service. We are currently exploiting technological initiatives that will drive customer satisfaction 

to a level that supersedes the rest in the industry. 

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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Customer Service Change program

The Change Champions Program is an all inclusive initiative whose objective is to improve service culture leading 

to improvement in customer satisfaction. The team was involved in various successful initiatives in 2012 with great 

impact. A reward system that recognises staff that are passionate in service was launched. This has improved 

teamwork by breaking barriers that hinder service delivery.  

In october 2012, Customer Service and Change Champions were involved in a successful customer appreciation 

initiative that further enhanced teamwork. This particularly focused on internal customers with the objective that 

“We are one” and we all have a stake in delivering good service. 2013 looks promising for Change Champions with 

various programs already lined up.

2. Shareholders

The Company has received adequate capital from the shareholders to run the business and has an obligation to 

provide a fair return on their investment. Clear, honest and accurate communication is made to the Company’s 

shareholders to enable them understand the current performance and future prospects of the business. 

Sound relations with shareholders, investment analysts, financial journalists and credit rating agencies enable the 

Company to provide relevant timely information that creates a better understanding of the company’s operations 

and business strategy. This approach has led to the Company achieving a good rating from peers. 

The Company will continue to increase the broader understanding of the key value drivers of its financial performance 

through enhanced disclosures. This will position the Company as a sound investment and encourage investors to 

retain and increase their shares in the Company’s parent which is quoted at the Nairobi Securities Exchange.

3. Employees

The Company has developed policies that ensure the rights of all employees are respected. The Company upholds 

workplace practices that optimise employees output including remuneration and benefits benchmarked to the best 

in the industry, opportunities for local and international training and development and management of work/life 

balance. 

The company continues to offer welfare services and medical care to employees and eligible dependants to ensure 

a healthy and motivated staff. The company signed an agreement with Amani Counselling Centre to afford staff 

counselling services on need basis. In an effort to support the employees, the company has provided education 

grants on merit to children of employees who score high marks in KCPE and support them through KCSE.

Apart from being an equal opportunity employer, the Company has over the last twelve months offered over 10 

continuing students from various universities an opportunity to carry out internship programs now a pre-requisite 

for degree programs in most Universities. All employees have signed a “Code of Conduct” that promotes ethical 

business practices and ensures that they maintain the highest standards of professionalism in handling their 

responsibilities.

Disabled employees are reasonably accommodated at the work place – examples include doors lifts and segregated 

bathrooms large enough to allow wheelchair access. During the year, we had one employee and three agents who 

are physically challenged. CfC Life is not unionized, and we are not party to any collective bargaining agreements.

Risk assessments were conducted on the health and safety of the workplace environment and measures taken to 

create a safer place of work. This has resulted in a redesign of our head office workplace configured to improve 

the ergonomics of each work station in line with occupational health and safety standards. During the period, 
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several earthquake preparedness and fire drills were conducted successfully. Regular checks are made on health 

and safety procedures incorporating external consultants, employees, agents and tenants. 

The Company has considered the impact its products, services and operations have on the broader ecological 

system and has set-up various energy and water conservation programmes. The Company has embarked on 

a project to review and upgrade its “Business Continuity” preparedness in order to comply with international 

best practice as espoused by the Business Continuity Institute of London. This will ensure minimal disruption of 

business operations in case of disaster.

4. Agents

At the end of 2012 more than 360 agents were contracted to sell CFC Life products and services throughout 

Kenya. Some of the ‘’tied’’ agents sell CFC Life products and those of other group companies. one of the key 

challenges during the year remained that of transforming agents from a product focus to a solution focus. The 

biggest challenge along the year however was the institution of the cashless environment from August 5th 2012. 

This initiative though will have long term benefit, delayed upload of new policies and premiums from banks for 

an average of two and a half months.

During the year, emphasis was put in retention and quality business. Agents were trained continuously to help 

understand customers’ needs to encourage “need selling”. A process of quality checks of new business before 

transactions was introduced in all branches. Agency secretaries were trained to provide customer service at all 

branches and to do pre underwriting at the branches. During the year a new head of agency sales and a national 

sales manager were recruited. Agents went through many hours of training with the help from a dedicated 

training manager recruited the previous year.

Regular motivation talks continued during the year alongside incentive programmes run to spur production. 

The centralised recruitment process gave leeway for agency managers to identify talent for their branches and 

refer these to recruiters who make the final decision. This improved retention of new agents to 65%. There was 

a serious threat of Agents poaching from one of the industry players during the year. our Rem model that differs 

from other players was used an excuse. We countered this by emphasizing our values and firm structures that 

support long term relationships that translates into a win-win partnership.

5. Suppliers

our total procurement spending was Shs 212 million. It is a policy of CfC Life that value for money be secure. 

It follows that in managing external expenditure CfC Life shall ensure that the best practice is followed within 

Procurement. By leveraging on its long term relationships and partnerships with it’s suppliers, the Company is 

able to effectively extract increased cost savings.

It is best practice to keep the number of suppliers at the minimum that will support CfC Life. Therefore new 

supplier request is critically examined; moreover maverick buying and optimizing the value of new and existing 

contracts remains a fundamental tenet of supply management in our organization. 

CfC Life prescribes to the newly introduced procurement regulations and all products and services procured 

that pose a potential environmental risk are managed accordingly. Contracts have been executed with most 

suppliers for clear understanding of engagement terms and conditions. The aim is to support and promote the 

transformation of our suppliers, moving beyond compliance to creating a sustainable and transformed supplier 

base.

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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6. Community affiliation

a) Products and services

The Company continues to develop policies that enhance the welfare of the community both in the long-term 

and short-term. During the year, the company developed a funeral product targeting the retail market and this is 

expected to be launched in the first quarter of 2013.

All our products are approved by the industry regulator and conform to internationally prescribed standards. 

We are a customer focused provider of relevant, affordable and readily accessible products that add value to the 

individual and community at large. This is part of our mission.

our product promotions are conducted ethically to protect consumer rights and avoid unethical practices. We 

strive to ensure all personal data of clients is safeguarded at all times. As part of our process re-engineering, all 

activities are conducted in a manner that reduces air, water, solid waste and noise pollution.

b) The CfC Life-Ladies Club

The CfC Life-Ladies Club is a non-profit making venture involved in charity work to help less fortunate members 

of our society. membership is drawn from CfC Life staff and agents, The Heritage and STANLIB. The club’s 

activities are mainly sponsored by the Company, but donations from the general public and income generating 

activities conducted by members supplement the kitty. The CfC Life-Ladies Club was started in 1989 and has been 

instrumental in directly shaping the lives of young Kenyans thereby making a difference in Kenyan society. The 

activities include payment of fees and mentoring youth. To date, 10 students have received university Degrees 

through this program.

Risk Management

The Company has implemented a robust Risk management Framework based on the following fundamental core 

principles:

•	 Risk exposure is an innate part of doing business; therefore, a clearly articulated and fully embedded risk 

management strategy is an essential part of any effective business strategy.

•	 Risk management strategies are determined with reference to the Company’s risk appetite, which is set by the 

Board.  

•	 The nature and intensity of risk management strategies should be tailored to the risk profile of each business 

process.

ownership and accountability of risk management are of primary importance.  Risk cannot be managed centrally.  

management must take ownership of and be accountable for the day-to-day management of risk within their 

areas of accountability:

•	 The Board and management clearly communicating and consistently demonstrating behaviours that collectively 

promotes an entrenched risk culture throughout the Company.

•	 All Company employees taking responsibility and accepting ownership for managing the operational risks 

inherent in their work.

•	 Consistent use of standardised risk management practices and terminology across the Company.

•	 Allocating capital to each business unit commensurate with its risk profile (this process still needs to be defined).

•	 measuring operational risk management procedures against policies and benchmarks approved by the Board. 

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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The scope of the framework covers the operational, people, process, systems, market, external, compliance and 

legal risks. Accountability for risk is based on a three lines of defence supporting the governance element. 

The first line of defence is on the operational level of the business by individual staff members who are accountable 

for support and delivery of procedures and controls, middle level managers who are accountable for operational 

leadership and senior management who are accountable for strategic leadership. The day to day responsibility 

for the management of risk lies with the department or support function which conducts the activity which gives 

rise to risk. management ensures that appropriate awareness, implementation and monitoring of adherence to 

the framework. management has identified risk owners for each specific type of risk and ensure that they identify, 

assess and monitor their risks using the tools and methodologies provided by business risk management. The risk 

owners ensure that appropriate controls are applied and operate effectively and that actions plans are in place to 

rectify unacceptable risk exposures. 

The second line of defence consists of the risk policy and oversight functions, which are independent from line 

management.  The second line of defence is primarily accountable for developing risk management frameworks 

and policies. They assist management in the first line of defence to implement frameworks and policies and 

providing an independent oversight function of the first line’s compliance with these frameworks and policies. 

The risk policy and oversight function reports to the Audit and Risk Committee on a quarterly basis with emphasis 

on high risk areas and actions being taken by management to mitigate or eliminate against the impact and 

likelihood of the risk occurrence.

The third line of defence is the independent assurance provided by internal and external audit who assure of the 

accuracy, efficiency and operation of the risk frameworks adopted and have direct access to the Company Audit 

and Risk Committee.

CoRPoRATE GoVERNANCE STATEmENT
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The CSR team with the two students of Nairobi School when they visited the school to present the school 

fees grant cheque and to follow-up on their performance.

CfC Life mD mr. Abel munda and the CfC Life CSR committee handing over umbrellas to the Nairobi Area 

Deputy Traffic Commandant Leonard Katana to distribute to his traffic police stationed within the city 

centre.
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CfC Life managing Director- Abel munda handing over a certificate of recognition to one of the Company 

Sponsored student during the annual mentorship and award event held in August 2012.

mr. William oluande, Head of Agency, handing over the sponsorship cheques to mr. matthew Kithyaka, 

Director of Starehe Boys Centre and the four students who are beneficiaries of the school fees grant 

program.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
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The Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of its profit or loss. 

It also requires the directors to ensure that the Company keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with 

reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using 

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable estimates, in conformity with International Financial 

Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act. The directors are of the opinion that the financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of its profit or loss in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The directors further accept responsibility for the 

maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well 

as designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern 

for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

P N Gethi        A munda

21 February 2013
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Report of the Consulting Actuary
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We have conducted an actuarial valuation of the life assurance business of CfC Life Assurance Limited as at 31 

December 2012.

The valuation was conducted in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and in accordance with 

the requirements of the Kenyan Insurance Act. These principles require prudent provision for future outgo under 

contracts, generally based upon the assumptions that current conditions will continue. Provision is therefore not 

made for all possible contingencies. 

In completing the actuarial valuation, we have relied upon the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion, the life assurance business of the Company was financially sound and the actuarial value of 

the liabilities in respect of all classes of life insurance business did not exceed the amount of funds of the life 

assurance business at 31 December 2012.

Aon South Africa (Pty) Ltd

21 February 2013
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Report of the Independent Auditor



38 CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012



39CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

REPORT Of ThE InDEPEnDEnT AUDITOR TO ThE MEMBERS Of CfC LIfE ASSURAnCE LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CfC Life Assurance Limited (the “Company”) set out 
on pages 43 to 90.  These financial statements comprise the statement of financial position at 31 December 2012, 
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and a statement of cash flows for 

the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act and for such 

internal control, as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 

audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation 

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s  internal control.  An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion.  

Opinion

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s 

financial affairs at 31 December 2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Kenyan Companies Act.

Report on other legal requirements 

The Kenya’s Companies Act requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on the following 

matters.  We confirm that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii) In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination 

of those books;

iii) The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement with 

the books of account.

Certified Public Accountants                                      29 April 2013

Nairobi 

REPoRT oF THE INDEPENDENT AUDIToR
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Financial Reports
To the members of CfC Life Assurance Limited
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Income statement for the year ended 31 Dec 2012

 Notes Long-term  Long-term Short-term
  Business Total Business Business Total
  2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 
  Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 
      
Gross earned premiums 5 1,513,455 1,513,455 1,332,689 58,017 1, 390,706

Less: reinsurance premium        
ceded  (185,020) (185,020) (127,957) (387) (128,344)

Net earned premiums  1,328,435 1,328,435 1,204,732 57,630 1,262,362

Investment income 6 1,868,210 1,868,210 1,005,769 9,571 1,015,340

Commissions earned  64,526 64,526 51,068 126 51,194

Fee Income  13,292 13,292 12,010 1,927 13,937

Total revenue  3,274,463 3,274,463 2,273,579 69,254 2,342,833

Claims and policyholder  7 1,799,922 1,799,922 885,863 445 886,308 
benefits

Commissions payable  196,931 196,931 205,760 4,179 209,939

operating and other 8 899,301 899,301 580,098 319,209 899,307 
expenses

Total out-flow  2,896,154 2,896,154 1,671,721 323,833 1,995,554

Profit/(loss) before tax  378,309 378,309 601,858 (254,579) 347, 279

Income tax (expense)       
/credit 10 (47,279) (47,279) (90,000) 58,141 (31,859)

Profit/(loss) for the year  331,030 331,030 511,858 (196,438) 315,420

FINANCIAL REPoRTS
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Dec 2012

     2012 2011
     Notes Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000

Profit for the year     331,030 315,420

 other comprehensive income/(expenses) (net of tax):

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings   13 54,211 -

 Change in fair value of available-for-sale assets   13 259,682 (1,030,601)

 Impairment on available-for-sale investments   13 14,783 67,874

 other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year net of tax  328,676 (962,727)

 Total comprehensive  income/ (deficit) for the year             659,706       (647,307)

The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012

     Notes Total 2012
Capital Employed      Shs’000
Share capital     12 612,340
other reserves     13 707,609
Retained earnings     14 (237,211)
Statutory reserve     15 823,030
Proposed Dividends     11 100,00

Shareholders’ funds      2,005,768

Represented By:
Assets

Property and equipment     16 660,272
Intangible assets     17 63,180
Investment property     18 756,249
Financial assets:
- Held-to-maturity     19 6,339,940
- Available-for-sale:     20 3,101,444
Corporate bonds      1,390,617
mortgage loans     21 226,107
Policy loans     22 615,992
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements    27,383
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements    35,278
Prepaid lease      650
Re-insurers’ share of technical provisions and reserves   23 130,506
other receivables     24 287,676
Tax recoverable      28,719

Cash and cash equivalents     32 4,428,839

Total assets      18,092,852

Liabilities  

Insurance contract liabilities     25 5,353,724

Payable under deposit administration contracts   27 10,104,276

Unearned premium     28 45,296

Creditors arising from reinsurance arrangements    8,078
Tax payable      965

other payables     29 574,745

Total liabilities      16,087,084

Net assets      2,005,768

The financial statements on pages 43 to 90 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 21 February 2013 

and signed on its behalf by:

___________________ _______________________ _________________

P N Gethi A munda G may
The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011

   Notes Long-term Short-term Total

    business business 2011
Capital Employed    Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Share capital   12 152,340 460,000 612,340

other reserves   13 350,521 - 350,521

Retained earnings   14  (312,546) (312,546)

Statutory reserve   15 318,022 - 318,022

Shareholders’ funds    820,883 147,454 968,337

repreSeNteD BY:
assets

Property and equipment   16 630,777 - 630,777

Intangible assets   17 100,935 - 100,935

Investment property   18 412,500 - 412,500

Financial assets:     

- Held-to-maturity   19 5,282,643 - 5,282,643

- Available-for-sale:   20 2,685,117 - 2,685,117

Corporate bonds    1,339,386 - 1,339,386

mortgage loans   21 200,413 - 200,413

Policy loans   22 673,461 - 673,461

Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements  20,450 - 20,450

Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements  14,470 - 14,470

Prepaid lease    660 - 660

Re-insurers’ share of technical provisions and reserves 23 12,461 93,199 105,660

other receivables   24 207,280 45,812 253,092

Tax recoverable    63,563 - 63,563

Cash and cash equivalents   32 1,589,407 30,616 1,620,023

Total assets    13,233,523 169,627 13,403,150

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities   25 4,311,485 21,673 4,333,158

Payable under deposit administration contracts 27 7,589,211 - 7,589,211

Unearned premiums   28 - - -

Creditors arising from reinsurance arrangements  1,057 500 1,557

other payables   29 510,887 - 510,887

Total liabilities    12,412,640 22,173 12,434,813

Net assets    820,883 147,454 968,337

The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity 

year ended 31 December 2012 Notes Share other Retained Statutory Proposed Total
  capital reserves earnings reserves dividends
  Shs’000 Shs‘000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000  Shs’000

Balance at 1 January 2012   612,340 350,521 (312,546) 318,022 - 968,337
Profit  for the year   - - 331,030 - - 331,030

other comprehensive income:

Gain on revaluation of land         
and buildings 16 - 54,211 - - - 54,211

Change in fair value of        
available-for-sale assets 20(i)&(ii) - 259,682 - - - 259,682

Impairment of        
available-for-sale investments 13 - 14,783 - - - 14,783

Transfer from statutory reserve 14 - - (231,028) 231,028 - -

Total other comprehensive income   - 328,676 (231,028) 231,028 - 328,676

Total comprehensive income for the year                - 328,676 100,002 231,028 - 659,706

Balances transferred         
from Heritage (Note 35)  - 28,412 75,333 273,980 - 377,725

Transaction with owners  

Dividends   

- Proposed dividends 11 - - (100,000) - 100,000 -

Total transactions with owners  - - (100,000) - 100,000 -

Balance as 31 December 2012  612,340 707,609 (237,211) 823,030 100,000 2,005,768

The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity 

year ended 31 December 2011 Notes Share other Retained Statutory Total
  capital reserves earnings reserves
  Shs’000 Shs‘000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Balance at 1 January 2011  612,340 1,313,248 (88,660) 78,716 1,915,644

Profit  for the year  - - 315,420 - 315,420

other comprehensive income:

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings 16 - - - - -

Change in fair value of available-for-sale assets 20(i)&(ii) - (1,030,601) - - (1,030,601)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments 13 - 67,874 - - 67,874

Transfer to statutory reserve 14 - - (239,306) 239,306 -

Total other comprehensive income   - (962,727) (239,306) 239,306 (962,727)

Total comprehensive income for the year  - (962,727) 76,114 239,306 (647,307)

Transaction with owners

Dividends

 -Interim dividend paid 11 - - (300,000) - (300,000)

total transactions with owners  - - (300,000) - (300,000)

Balance as 31 December 2011  612,340 350,521 (312,546) 318,022 968,337

The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash flows 

    Notes 2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations   33 277,638 117,029

Interest received     1,273,676 868,106

Income tax paid     (15,407) (59,638)

Net cash generated from operating activities    1,535,907 925,497

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment   16 (68,457) (27,361)

Purchase of intangible assets    17 (13,308) (24,358)

Net investment in quoted shares    20(i) 1,142,889 459,292

Net investment in government securities - AFS   20(ii) (846,346) 275,419

Net investment in government securities -HTm    314,111  (1,077,839)

Net investment in corporate bonds    124,400 (193,631)

Net investment in mortgage loans   21 15,628 (55,439)

Net investment in policy loans    22 57,469 (72,091)

Dividends received    6 90,720 101,662

Net cash used in investing activities    817,106 (614,346)

Cash flows from financing activities    

Dividends paid     - (300,000)

Net cash used in financing activities    - (300,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    2,353,013 11,151

movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year    1,620,023 1,608,872

Cash and cash equivalents from Heritage (Note 35)   455,803 -

Increase     2,353,013 11,151

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   32 4,428,839 1,620,023

The notes on pages 51 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements
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1. General Information

CfC Life Assurance Company Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in Kenya under the Companies Act and is 

domiciled in Kenya. The address of its registered office is:-

CfC House, mamlaka Rd

P.o. Box 30364-00100 Nairobi.

The Company is engaged in long-term insurance that comprises life assurance and deposit administration. Life 

assurance business relates to the underwriting of risks relating to death of an insured person, and includes 

contracts subject to the payment of premiums for a term dependent on the termination or continuance of the life 

of an insured person. Deposit administration business relates to administration of pension scheme funds. 

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement of financial 

position and the profit and loss account by the income statement in these financial statements.

2.    Summary of Significant Accouting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

These accounting policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The 

measurement applied is the historical cost basis, except for the following:

Carried at fair values:

•	 Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale.

•	 Investment properties and owner-occupied properties.

Carried at a different measurement basis:

•	 Policyholders’ insurance contract liabilities at actuarially determined present value.

•	 Impaired assets at their recoverable amounts.

The financial statements are presented in the functional currency, Kenya Shillings (Shs), rounded to the nearest 

thousand.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions.  

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting 

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are 

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes to standards and new interpretations effective in 2012

(i)   New and amended standards adopted

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on 

1 January 2012 that would be expected to have a material impact on the Company.

FINANCIAL REPoRTSnotes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2012



52 CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 

not been early adopted by the Company

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods 

beginning after 1 January 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these 

is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company, except the following set out 

below:

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ regarding other comprehensive income. The 

main change resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in 

‘other comprehensive income’ (oCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss 

subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not address which items are presented in oCI. 

The application of this amendment will mainly impact the presentation of the primary statements.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise 

definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across 

IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair 

value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted 

by other standards within IFRSs or US GAAP. The application of IFRS 13 may enhance fair value disclosures in 

certain circumstances.

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets 

and financial liabilities. Issued in November 2009 and october 2011, it replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate 

to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified 

into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortized cost. 

The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for 

managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial 

liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. 

The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair 

value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income 

statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The directors are yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact and 

intend to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The directors will 

also consider the impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the IASB.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a 

material impact on the Company.

(b)    Insurance contracts 

Classification

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those 

contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk. As a general 

guideline, the Company defines as significant insurance risk, the possibility of having to pay benefits on the 

occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not 

occur.

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk. The 

accounting policy for these contracts is described under note 2(d) to the financial statements. Insurance contracts 

and investment contracts are classified into two main categories, depending on the duration of risk and as per 

the provisions of the Kenyan Insurance Act. Long-term insurance business includes insurance business of all or 

any of the following classes, namely, life assurance business, superannuation business, industrial life assurance 

business, bond investment business and business incidental to any such class of business. Life assurance business 

means the business of, or in relation to, the issuing of, or the undertaking of a liability to pay money on death 

(not being death by accident or in specified  sickness only) or on the happening of any contingency dependent on 

the termination  or continuance of human life (either with or without provision for a benefit under a continuous 

disability insurance contract) and include a contract which is subject to the payment of premiums for term 

dependent on the termination  or continuance of human life and any contract securing the grant of an annuity 

for a term dependent upon human life; Superannuation business means life assurance business, being business 

of, or in relation  to, the issuing of or the undertaking of liability under superannuation, group life and permanent 

health insurance policy.

Recognition and measurement

(i) Premium income

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown 

before deduction of commission.

(ii) Claims

Benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred. Claims arising on maturing policies are recognised 

when the claim becomes due for payment. Death claims are accounted for on notification. Surrenders are 

accounted for on payment. A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is 

recorded when the premiums are recognised. The liability is determined as the sum of the expected discounted 

value of the benefit payments and the future administration expenses that are directly related to the contract, 

less the expected discounted value of the theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits and 

administration expenses based on the valuation assumptions used (the valuation premiums). The liability is based 

on assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses and investment income that are established at 

the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviations is included in the assumptions. Where insurance 

contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a significantly shorter 

period than the period during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the valuation 

premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the 

contracts in-force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected 

to be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each financial reporting date using the assumptions established at 

inception of the contracts.

(iii) Commissions payable and deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)   

Deferred acquisition costs represent the proportion of commissions payable and other acquisition costs that 

relates to policies that are in force at the year end where the premium has not been earned. DAC is recognised 

as an asset and is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts in line with premium revenue using 

assumptions consistent with those used in calculating future policy benefit liabilities.
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(iv) Liability adequacy test

At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract 

liabilities net of related DAC. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows 

and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such 

liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to income statement initially by writing off DAC and by 

subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision).

As set out above, long-term insurance contracts are measured based on assumptions set out at the inception 

of the contract. When the liability adequacy test requires the adoption of new best estimate assumptions, such 

assumptions (without margins for adverse deviation) are used for the subsequent measurement of these liabilities.

(v) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Company with re-insurers under which the Company is compensated for losses 

on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance 

contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements 

are classified as financial assets.  Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract 

holder is another insurer (inward reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. During the twelve months 

ended 31 December 2012, the Company did not enter into any such contracts (2011: Nil).

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance 

assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are 

dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts 

recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured 

insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are 

primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due. 

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is objective evidence 

that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its 

recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income statement. 

The Company gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted 

for financial assets held at amortised cost. The impairment loss is also calculated following the same method used 

for these financial assets. These processes are described in Note 2 (i).

(vi)  Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts and investment contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents and insurance 

contract holders. If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces 

the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the income 

statement. 

The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process 

adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is also calculated under the same method used for these 

financial assets. These processes are described in Note 2 (i). 
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(c) Revenue recognition

(i) Insurance premium revenue

The revenue recognition policy relating to insurance contracts is set out under note (b) above

(ii) Commissions earned

Commissions receivable are recognised as income in the period in which they are earned.

(iii) Rendering of services

Revenue arising from asset management and other related services offered by the Company are recognised in 

the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Fees consist primarily of investment management fees 

arising from services rendered in conjunction with the issue and management of investment contracts where the 

Company actively manages the consideration received from its customers to fund a return that is based on the 

investment profile that the customer selected on origination of the instrument. 

These services comprise the activity of trading financial assets in order to reproduce the contractual returns 

that the Company’s customers expect to receive from their investments. Such activities generate revenue that 

is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contractual services. In all cases, these services 

comprise an indeterminate number of acts over the life of the individual contracts. For practical purposes, the 

Company recognises these fees on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the contract. Certain upfront 

payments received for asset management services (‘front-end fees’) are deferred and amortised in proportion to 

the stage of completion of the service for which they were paid. 

The Company charges its customers for asset management and other related services using the following different 

approaches:

•	 Front-end fees are charged to the client on inception. This approach is used particularly for single premium 

contracts. The consideration received is deferred as a liability and recognised over the life of the contract on a 

straight-line basis; and 

•	 Regular fees are charged to the customer periodically (monthly, quarterly or annually) either directly or by 

making a deduction from invested funds. Regular charges billed in advance are recognised on a straight-line 

basis over the billing period; fees charged at the end of the period are accrued as a receivable that is offset 

against the financial liability when charged to the customer.

(iv) Interest income 

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments, including financial instruments measured at fair 

value through profit or loss, is recognised within “investment income’ (Note 6) in the income statement using the 

effective interest rate method. When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its 

recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the 

instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income for equities is recognised when the right to receive payment is established – this is the ex-

dividend date for equity securities.
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(d) Investment contracts

The Company issues investment contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms (fixed interest rate). The investment 

contracts include funds administered for a number of retirement benefit schemes. 

The Company designates investment contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms to be measured at amortised 

cost. In this case, the liability is initially measured at its fair value less transaction costs that are incremental and 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the contract.

Subsequent measurement of investment contracts at amortised cost uses the effective interest method. This 

method requires the determination of an interest rate (the effective interest rate) that exactly discounts to the net 

carrying amount of the financial liability, the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 

life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period if the holder has the option to redeem the 

instrument earlier than maturity.

The Company re-estimates at each reporting date the expected future cash flows and recalculates the carrying 

amount of the financial liability by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows using the financial 

liability’s original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is immediately recognised as income or expense in the 

income statement.

(e) functional currency and translation of foreign currencies

i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings 

(“Shs”) which is the Company’s functional currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective entity using the 

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 

the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the 

income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in 

income statement within ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’.

(f) Property and equipment

All categories of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Buildings are subsequently shown at 

market value, based on annual valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation. All 

other property and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure 

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 

cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement 

during the year in which they are incurred.
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Increases in the carrying amount of buildings arising on revaluation are credited to a revaluation reserve. 

Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve; all other 

decreases are charged to the income statement.  Each year the difference between depreciation based on the 

revalued carrying amount of the asset (the depreciation charged to the income statement) and depreciation 

based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis to write down the cost of each asset, or the revalued amount, 

to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings      25 – 40 years

Equipment        3 – 10 years

motor vehicles      4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial reporting 

date. Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 

the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 

fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 

lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts 

and are taken into account in determining profit or loss.  on disposal of revalued assets, amounts in the revaluation 

reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(g) Investment property

Investment properties comprise land and buildings and parts of buildings held to earn rentals and/or for capital 

appreciation.  They are carried at fair value, determined annually by external independent valuers.  Fair value is 

based on active market prices as adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, condition or location of 

the specific asset.

Investment properties are not subject to depreciation.  Changes in their carrying amount between financial 

reporting dates are recorded, net of deferred tax, through the income statement. on disposal of an investment 

property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the 

income statement.

(h) Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use 

the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (three to five years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense 

as incurred.  Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products 

controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one 

year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include the software development, employee costs and 

an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Computer software development costs recognised as assets are 

amortised over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding three years).
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(i)  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. 

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 

which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 

at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial 

assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 

reporting date. 

(j) financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss; loans, advances and receivables; held-to-maturity financial assets; and available-for-sale assets. 

management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through 

profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if acquired principally for the purpose 

of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held-for-trading. 

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss when:

a)  Doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a measurement inconsistency; or

b) They form part of a group of financial assets that is managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance 

with a documented risk management or investment strategy and reported to key management personnel on 

that basis.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held-for-trading or are expected to be 

realised within 12 months of the financial reporting date. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company 

held financial assets in this category amounting to Kes 964,164,986 (2011: Nil).

(ii) Loans, advances and receivables

Loans, advances and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market, other than:

a) Those classified as held-for-trading and those that the Company on initial recognition designates as at fair 

value through profit and loss;

b) Those that the Company upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; or

c) Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of 

credit deterioration.

(iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 

maturities that management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Were the Company to sell 

more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would have to be reclassified as 

available for sale. Corporate bonds and Part of government securities are classified under this category.
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(iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale assets are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in 

response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates, or equity prices or that are not 

classified as loans and receivables held to maturity investments or Fair value through profit or loss. Equity 

investments and some treasury bonds are classified under this category.

Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, for all financial assets except those carried at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs.  Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows 

from the financial assets have expired or where the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 

of ownership. 

Loans, advances and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss are carried at fair value.  

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ are 

included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.  Gains and losses arising from changes in the 

fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ until the financial 

asset is derecognised or impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement. However, interest calculated using the effective 

interest method is recognised in the income statement.  

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the Company’s 

right to receive payment is established. Fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current 

bid prices. Fair values for unlisted equity securities are estimated using valuation techniques.  

These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation 

techniques commonly used by market participants.  Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured 

reliably are recognised at cost less impairment. 

(v) Financial liabilities

All the Company’s financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. These include payables under deposit 

administration and creditors arising from reinsurance arrangements. Financial liabilities are initially measured at 

fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised when extinguished.

(k) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and 

impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 

that occurred after initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on 

the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated 

such as:

a) significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;
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c) the Company granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial 

difficulty, a concession that the Company would not otherwise consider;

d) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; 

f) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group 

of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified 

with the individual financial assets in the group, including:

•	 Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

•	 National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group; or

g) Significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of investments in equity instruments below their cost.

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its identification is determined by management for each 

identified portfolio.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for individual financial assets.  If there 

is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, 

the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 

of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 

financial instrument’s original effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 

of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.  

If a loan or held-to-maturity asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 

is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may 

measure impairment on the basis of an instruments fair value using an observable market price. The calculation 

of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows 

that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is 

probable.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment.  Such loans 

are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been 

determined.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision 

for loan impairment in the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised 

(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by 

adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(ii) Assets carried at fair value

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 

of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence 

exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the 

acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised 

in profit or loss – is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised 

in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. 
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the 

increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income 

statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(iii) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms 

have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans. In subsequent 

years, the renegotiated terms apply in determining whether the asset is considered to be past due.

(l)   Accounting for leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised at the inception 

of the lease at the lower of their fair value and the estimated present value of the underlying lease payments. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the 

finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in non-

current liabilities. The interest element of the finance charge is charged to the income statement over the lease 

period. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the estimated useful 

life of the asset.

(m)   Share capital

ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity; any premium received over and above the par value of 

the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.

(n)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For the purposes of 

the Statement of Cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, 

and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

(o)  Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to long service awards are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is 

made for the estimated liability for such entitlements as a result of services rendered by employees up to the 

financial reporting date.

The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlement at the financial reporting date 

is recognised as an expense accrual.

(p)  Retirement benefit obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme for its employees.  The assets of the scheme are held 

in separate trustee administered funds, which are funded from contributions from both the Company and 

employees.  The employees of the Company are also members of the National Social Security Fund (“NSSF”). The 

Company’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme and NSSF are charged to the income statement in 

the year to which they relate.
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(q) Income tax

•	 Current income tax 

 The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.  In 

this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

 Current income tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit for the year determined in 

accordance with the relevant tax legislation. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the 

tax enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.  management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject 

to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to 

the tax authorities.

•	 Deferred income tax

 Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred 

income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other 

than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 

loss.  

 Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

at the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax 

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to 

the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences 

can be utilised.

 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to 

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis..

(r) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the period in which they are declared. Proposed dividends 

are accounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been ratified at an Annual General meeting.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and 

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

(a) Impairment losses on loans and receivables

The Company assesses its loan portfolios for impairment at each financial reporting date. In determining whether 

an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Company makes judgements as to whether 

there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of 

loans before the decrease can be allocated to an individual loan in that portfolio. 
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Estimates are made of the duration between the occurrence of a loss event and the identification of a loss on 

an individual basis. The impairment for performing loans is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical 

loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the 

reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. mortgage loans are individually impaired if the amounts 

are due and unpaid for three or more months. other loans are analysed on a case-by-case basis taking into 

account breaches of key loan conditions. management’s estimates of future cash flows on individually impaired 

loans are based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The methodology 

and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to 

reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. No impairment losses were recognised 

in 2012 (2011: Nil). If impairment losses were to be recognised by a decrease/increase by 1% of the current values 

of loans and receivables, the profit/loss for the period would decrease/increase by 4% (2011: 8%).

(b) fair values of financial assets

Fair values of certain financial assets recognised in the financial statements may be determined in whole or part 

using valuation techniques based on assumptions that are supported by prices from current market transactions 

or observable market data. The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are 

determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example models) are used to 

determine fair values, they are validated and periodically independently reviewed by qualified senior personnel. 

All models are certified before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data 

and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use observable data, however, areas such as credit 

risk (both own and counter-party), volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.

(c) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Company determines that available for sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant 

or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires 

judgement. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in the 

share price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial 

health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing 

cash flows.In the current year, the fair value of some available for sale equity investments fell significantly below 

cost. As a result, an impairment loss of Shs 14,783,000 (2011: Shs 67,874,000) was recognised in the income 

statement in relation to these investments. Were all the equity securities with fair value below cost considered 

impaired, the Company would record an additional impairment charge of Shs 4,026,677 (2011: Shs 156,738,703).

(d) held-to-maturity investments

The Company follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed 

or determined payments and fixed maturity, as held-to-maturity. This classification requires judgement of the 

Company’s ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Company fails to keep these investments to maturity 

other than for specific defined circumstances, it will be required to classify the entire class as available-for-sale. 

The investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not amortised cost. 

Were the Company’s held to maturity portfolio is to be considered tainted, they would need to be classified as 

available for sale and carried at fair value of Shs 7,381,378,475 (2011: Shs 4,592,230,509) resulting in an decrease 

in the Company’s net assets by Shs 349,178,219  (2011:Shs 690,412,251).
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(e) Insurance contract liabilities

It is the statutory requirement in Kenya that the insurance contract liabilities subject to a minimum of the statutory 

Net premium Valuation (NPV) basis. The NPV is intended to measure the solvency of the life operation on a stable 

basis and examines the business from the point of view of premiums that are net of standard expense allowances 

the value of future net premium is compared with the cost of providing contractual policyholder benefits over the 

duration of the policy. 

When performing the liability adequacy test, all classes for which undiscounted liabilities were calculated, a 

discounted cash flow model was created based on the “best estimate” assumptions. Prudent margins are added 

to these to project cash flows. These are then discounted at the valuation interest rate. 

(i) Mortality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract and class of business. 

Industry standard tables are used for smaller classes of business, while Company specific tables are used for larger 

classes. Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of the years in which the Company is 

exposed to risk. The Company bases these estimates on standard mortality tables that reflect historical mortality 

experience. 

The estimated number of deaths determines the value of the benefit payments and the value of the valuation 

premiums. The main source of uncertainty is that epidemics such as AIDS could result in future mortality being 

significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in which the Company has significant exposure to mortality 

risk. 

However, continuing improvements in medical care and social conditions could result in improvements in 

longevity in excess of those allowed for in the estimates used to determine the liability for contracts where the 

Company is exposed to longevity risk. For contracts without fixed terms, it is assumed that the Company will be 

able to increase mortality risk charges in future years in line with emerging mortality experience. 

An investigation into mortality experience is performed annually. The period investigation extends over the latest 

three full years for larger classes of business. Investigations relating to smaller classes usually extend over five 

years in order to gain sufficient credibility of the data. The results of the investigation are used to set the valuation 

assumptions, which are taken as an adjustment to the respective standard table.

In setting the assumptions, provision is made for the expected increase in AIDS-related claims. In general, 

Actuarial Society of South Africa (ASSA) models are used to allow AIDS-related claims. The practice differs by class 

of business, however for major classes of business; a basic allowance for AIDS related deaths is included in the 

base mortality rates against which annual mortality investigations are conducted. A further discretionary margin 

is then held using the ASSA2000 lie model.

(ii) Morbidity

The incidence of disability claims is derived from industry experience studies, adjusted where appropriate for CfC 

Life’s own experience. The same is true for the incidence of recovery from disability.

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies  (continued)



65CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

(iii) Withdrawal

The withdrawal assumptions are based on the most recent withdrawal investigations taking into account past 

as well as expected future trends. The withdrawal rates are analysed by product type and policy duration. These 

withdrawal rates vary considerably by duration, policy term and Company. Typically the rates are higher for risk 

type products versus investment type products, and are higher at early durations.

(iv)  Correlation

No correlations between assumptions are allowed for.

4.   Management of Insurance and Financial risk

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks, including insurance risk, financial risk, credit risk, and 

the effects of changes in debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The 

Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the identification and management of risks and 

seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, by use of underwriting guidelines and 

capacity limits, reinsurance planning, credit policy governing the acceptance of clients, and defined criteria for 

the approval of intermediaries and reinsurers.  

Investment policies are in place which help manage liquidity, and seek to maximize return within an acceptable 

level of interest rate risk.

This section summarizes the way the Company manages key risks:

(a) Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of 

the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore 

unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the 

principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments 

exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. 

This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance 

events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the 

level established using statistical techniques. 

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability 

about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the 

board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy 

to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large 

population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. 

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, 

geographical location and type of industry covered. 
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The following tables disclose the concentration of insurance liabilities by the class of business in which the 

contract holder   operates and by the maximum insured loss limit included in the terms of the policy. The 

amounts are the carrying amounts    of the insurance liabilities (gross and net of re-insurance) arising from 

insurance contracts: The concentration by sector or maximum insured loss at the end of the year is broadly 

consistent with the prior year.

year ended 31 December 2012

Class of business    maximum insured loss  
  Kshs 0m - 15m 15m-250m 250m+ Total
Life assurance business     

ordinary life  Gross 20,177,761 274,165 - 20,451,926

  Net 17,001,846 12,000 - 17,013,846

Group life  Gross 55,751,491 17,505,081 300,000 73,556,572

  Net 34,068,563 1,460,000 2,000 35,530,563

Total   Gross 75,929,252 17,779,246 300,000 94,008,498

  Net 51,070,409 1,472,000 2,000 52,544,409

year ended 31 December 2011

Class of business    maximum insured loss  
General Insurance Business  Kshs 0m - 15m 15m-250m 250m+ Total
Personal accident  Gross - - -  -

  Net - - - -

Life assurance business     

ordinary life  Gross 18,439,384 383,165 - 18,822,549

  Net 15,845,286 16,000 - 15,861,286

Group life  Gross 19,627,220 10,925,669 718,086 31,270,975

  Net 10,754,954 868,000 4,000 11,626,954

Total   Gross 38,066,604 11,308,834 718,086 50,093,524

  Net 26,600,240 884,000 4,000 27,488,240

(b) financial risk

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities (investment contracts), 

reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular the key financial risk is that the proceeds from its 

financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment contracts. The 

most important components of this financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, currency risk and credit 

risk. These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed 

to general and specific market movements. The risks that the Company primarily faces due to the nature of its 

investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Company manages these positions within an asset liability management (ALm) framework that has been 

developed to achieve long-term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and investment 

contracts. The principal technique of the Company’s ALm is to match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance 

and investment contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable to contract holders.
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(c) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company invests offshore and underwrites some policies contracted in US dollars. In addition, the Company 

has cash balances held in foreign denominated accounts with local banks. This exposes the Company to foreign 

exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar. 

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net 

investments in foreign currencies. The Company manages foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial 

transactions and recognised assets and liabilities using forward contracts, but has not designated any derivative 

instruments as hedging instruments.

At 31 December 2012, if the Shilling had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the US dollar with all other 

variables held constant, the Company’s post tax (loss)/profit for the period would have been Shs 4,014,715  (2011: 

Shs 3,037,507  ) higher/lower, mainly as a result of US dollar investments and bank balances.

(ii) price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments in quoted classified as available-

for-sale. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments 

in equity and debt securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. 

Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with limits set by the Company and the Insurance Act. All 

quoted shares held by the Company are traded on the Nairobi Securities Exchange (NSE). Some shares are also 

held in offshore stock exchanges.

At 31 December 2012, if the NSE Index had increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and 

all the Company’s equity instruments moved  according to the historical correlation to the index, equity would 

have been Shs 39,662,750 (2011: Shs 83,798,867) higher/lower.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Fixed interest rate financial instruments expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. Variable interest 

rate financial instruments expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company’s fixed interest rate 

financial instruments are government securities and deposits with financial institutions. The Company’s variable 

interest rate financial instruments are quoted corporate bonds.

For liabilities under long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, changes in interest rate 

will not cause a change to the amount of the liability, unless the change is severe enough to trigger a liability 

adequacy test adjustment. 

Investment contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, government securities and deposits with financial 

institutions held to maturity are accounted for at amortised cost and their carrying amounts are not sensitive to 

changes in the level of interest rates. 
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(d) Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in 

full when due. Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are: Insurance receivables; Reinsurance 

receivables; and Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities.

other areas where credit risk arises include cash at bank, corporate bonds and deposits with banks, reinsurer’s 

share of insurance contract liabilities and other receivables. The Company has no significant concentrations of 

credit risk. The Company structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single 

counterparty, or groups of counterparty, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are subject to an 

annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk by category and territory are approved quarterly 

by the Board of Directors.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as 

primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to 

the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial 

strength prior to finalisation of any contract. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other 

mechanisms, such as the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. 

management information reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on loans and 

receivables and subsequent write-offs. Internal audit makes regular reviews to assess the degree of compliance 

with the Company’s procedures on credit. Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are 

collected within the ongoing monitoring of the controls associated with regulatory solvency. Where there exists 

significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial analysis 

equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company underwriting department.

The credit quality of financial asset that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 

the external credit ratings if available, or historical information about counterparty default rates. None of the 

company’s credit counterparties has external credit rating except the government of Kenya which has a B rating. 

For credit risk counterparties without and external credit rating, the company classifies them as follows.

 group 1 - New customers/related parties

 group 2 - Existing customers/related parties with no defaults in the past

 group 3 - Existing customers /related parties with some default in the past. All defaults were fully recovered.
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The amount that best represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31st December 2011 is made 

up as follows

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held     

    Credit 2012 2011
    Quality Grouping  Shs’000 Shs’000
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements  Group 2 27,383 20,450

Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements  Group 2 35,278 14,470

Reinsurers’ share notified claims (Note 23)   Group 2 130,506 105,660

Government securities held-to-maturity  (Note 19)  B+ 6,339,940 5,282,643

Government securities available-for-sale (Note 20)  B+ 2,277,619 998,157

Deposits with financial institutions (Note 31)   Group 2 4,190,975 1,466,815

Corporate bonds    Group 2 1,390,617 1,339,386

mortgage loans (Note 21)    Group 2 226,107 200,413

Policy loans (Note 22)    Group 2 615,992 673,461

other receivables (Note 24)    Group 2 287,676 186,340

Cash at bank    Group 2 237,864   153,091

Total     15,759,957 10,440,886

All mortgage loans have the property secured as collateral while policy loans have the cash value of the policy 

secured as collateral. In the case of car loans, the cars are secured as security. All receivables that are neither past 

due or impaired are within their approved credit limits, and no receivables have had their terms renegotiated. 

The fair value of property securing the mortgages was Shs 561,257,000 (2011: Shs 541,657,000). In the opinion of 

the directors, the fair values of the securities supporting car loans approximate the carrying values of the secured 

loans. The fair value of the collateral for the policy loan was Shs 724,696,000 (2011: Shs 765,645,000). None of 

the above assets are past due or impaired except for insurance receivables (which are due upon invoicing):

Financial assets that are past due or impaired

Insurance receivables are summarised as follows:   2012 2011
     Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000
Neither past due nor impaired     - -

Past due but not impaired      35,278 14,470

Impaired     - -

Gross     35,278 14,470

Less: allowance for impairment    - -

Net     35,278 14,470

Insurance receivables past due but not impaired:   2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

- by up to 30 days     10,941 7,995

- by 31 to 60 days     9,750 2,232

- by 61 to 150 days     9,881 1,172

- by 151 to 360 days     4,706 3,071

Total past due but not impaired    35,278 14,470

All receivables past due by more than 360 days are considered to be impaired, and are carried at their estimated 

recoverable value.
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(e)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities as they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.

The table below presents the cash flows receivable and payable by the Company under financial assets and 

liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the Statement of financial position date, except insurance 

contract liabilities which are stated at their expected maturities.  All figures are in thousands of Kenya Shillings.

  1-3 3-12 1-5 over 5 Total
  months months years years
As at 31 December 2012:  Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities  - (642,804) (83,797) 6,080,325 5,353,724

Payable under deposit administration - (218,257) 679,575 9,642,958 10,104,276 
contracts

Provision for unearned premiums 45,296 - - - 45,296

Creditors arising from reinsurance 8,078 - - - 8,078 
arrangements

other payables  574,745 - - - 574,745

Total financial liabilities  628,119 (861,061) 595,778 15,723,283 16,086,119 
(expected maturity dates)

assets     

other receivables  83,596 49,703 80,353 74,024 287,676

Receivables arising out of direct 30,572 4,706 - - 35,278 
Insurance arrangements

Reinsurers’ share of notified claims 130,506 - - - 130,506

Government securities  944,542 284,891 2,017,271 3,093,236 6,339,940 
held-to-maturity

Available-for-sale investments  3,101,444 - - - 3,101,444

Loans receivable  615,992 - 38,087 188,020 842,099

Corporate bonds  - - 893,617 497,000 1,390,617

Deposits with financial institutions 4,190,975 - - - 4,190,975

Cash and bank balances  237,864 - - - 237,864

Total financial assets  9,335,491 339,300 3,029,328 3,852,280 16,556,399 
(contractual maturity dates)
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  1-3 3-12 1-5 over 5 Total
  months months years years
As at 31 December 2011:  Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 

Liabilities        

Insurance contract liabilities  947,035 634,898 1,481,429 1,269,796 4,333,158

Payable under deposit administration 214,530 831,720 4,266,199 2,276,762 7,589,211 
contracts

Provision for unearned premiums - - - - -

Creditors arising from reinsurance 1,557 - - - 1,557 
arrangements

other payables  510,887 - - - 510,887

Total financial liabilities   1,674,009 1,466,618 5,747,628 3,546,558 12,434,813 
(expected maturity dates) 

Assets     

other receivables  73,545 43,727 70,692 65,124 253,088

Receivables arising out of direct  10,227 4,243 - - 14,470 
Insurance arrangements 

Reinsurers’ share of notified claims 105,660 - - - 105,660

Government securities        
held-to-maturity  - 474,284 2,099,186 2,709,173 5,282,643

Available-for-sale investments  2,685,117 - - - 2,685,117

Loans receivable  699,524 256 4,347 169,746 873,873

Corporate bonds  - 61,068 742,173 536,145 1,339,386

Commercial paper  - - - - -

Deposits with financial institutions 1,466,816 - - - 1,466,816

Cash and bank balances  153,208 - - - 153,208

Total financial assets  5,194,097 583,578 2,916,398 3,480,188 12,174,261 
(contractual maturity dates)

Long-term insurance and deposit administration contracts can be surrendered before maturity for a cash 

surrender value specified in the contractual terms and conditions. Prudent liquidity risk management includes 

maintaining sufficient cash balances to cover anticipated surrenders before the contractual maturity dates. In 

addition, the Company invests only a limited proportion of its assets in investments that are not actively traded. 

The Company’s listed securities are considered readily realisable, as they are actively traded on the Nairobi 

Stock Exchange.
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(f)  Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the 

Statement of financial positions, are:   

•	 To comply with the capital requirements as set out in the Insurance Act;

•	 To comply with regulatory solvency requirements as set out in the Insurance Act.

•	 To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns 

to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

•	 To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance and investment contracts 

commensurately with the level of risk.

The Insurance Act requires the insurance Company to hold the minimum level of paid up capital of Shs 150 

million.

Long-term insurance businesses are required to keep a solvency margin i.e. admitted assets less admitted 

liabilities equivalent to the higher of Shs 10 million or 5% of total admitted liabilities.

During the year the Company held the minimum paid up capital required and met the required solvency 

margin for its long-term business. The Company’s paid up capital at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is 

reflected on Note 12.

The solvency margin of the Company as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is illustrated below:

     Long-term Long-term
     business business
     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Admitted assets     17,866,625 13,063,634

Admitted liabilities     16,058,367 12,371,249

margin         1,808,258     692,385

Required margin     802,918 618,562
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(g)  fair value estimation

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements for financial assets that are measured at fair value by level 

of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). Inputs other than quoted 

prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or 

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable 

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 

2012.

As at 31 December 2012   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
   Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Assets    

Financial assets at fair value     

Available-for-sale financial assets:    

– Equity securities   823,825 - - 823,825

– Debt investments   - 2,277,619 - 2,277,619

Total assets   823,825 2,277,619 - 3,101,444

As at 31 December 2011    
Assets
Financial assets at fair value     
Available-for-sale financial assets:    

– Equity securities   1,686,960 - - 1,686,960

– Debt investments   - 998,157 - 998,157

Total assets   1,686,960 998,157 - 2,685,117

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the financial 

reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an 

exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual 

and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial 

assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in 

level 1 comprise primarily listed on the Nairobi Securities Exchange (NSE) equity investments classified as trading 

securities or available-for-sale. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 

(for example, government securities) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 

maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 

estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included 

in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 

included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

•	 Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

•	 The fair value of government securities is determined using yield curve based on prices of similar securities 

traded on the Nairobi Securities Exchange.
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other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining 

financial instruments. The Company had no financial instruments included in level 3 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 

Shs Nil).

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities

The held-to-maturity government security portfolio of the Company had a fair value of Shs 7,381,378,475 (2011: 

4,592,230,509). In the opinion of the directors, the carrying values of the company’s other financial assets and 

liabilities approximates the fair value.

5. Gross Earned Premiums
     2012 2011

     Shs’000 Shs’000
Life assurance business:

- ordinary life     1,156,761 1,127,023

 - Group life     356,694   205,666

     1,513,455 1,332,689

General insurance business:

- Personal accident and medical    - 58,017

Gross earned premiums     1,513,455 1,390,706

6. Investment Income    

   Long term Long term Short term Total

   2012 2011 2011 2011

   Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Interest from government securities  814,916 609,263 5,798 615,061

Interest on bank deposits   204,915 73,191 697 73,888

Rental income from investment property  65,033 14,762 140 14,902

Fair value gain on investment property  64,500 29,717 283 30,000 
(Note 18)

(Loss)/ Gain on sale of AFS treasury  (25,362) 3,046 29 3,075 
and corporate bonds

Gain on sale of AFS equities   419,727 97,560 928 98,488

Interest on corporate bonds   132,580 122,610 1,167 123,777

Interest on policy loans   91,355 65,551 624 66,175

Dividend income    90,720 100,704 958 101,662

Impairment loss on AFS equity   (14,783) (67,234) (640)  (67,874)

investments (Note 13)

other   24,609 (43,401) (413) (43,814)

Total Investment Income    1,868,210 1,005,769 9,571 1,015,340
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7. Claims and Policyholder benefits
     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

i) Short-term business

Claims payable by principal class of business:

- Personal accident and medical    - 445

ii) Long-term business 

Insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms:

- Death, maturity and surrender benefits paid and payable   660,701 547,848

- Increase in policyholder liabilities    387,167 80,603

- Interest payable on deposit administration contracts    752,054 257,412

     1,799,922 885,863

Total claims and policyholders benefits payable    1,799,922 886,308

8. Operating and Other Expenses

The following items are included within operating and other expenses: 

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Staff costs (Note 9)     312,981 401,522

Statutory audit fees     4,014 4,216

Actuarial fees     28,762 27,845

Legal fees     1,145 2,567

Premium collection charges     29,622 29,955

Premium tax and stamp duty     19,431 20,831

Rent and related expenses     16,603 15,806

Advertising     26,733 29,554

Depreciation (Note 16)     66,796 68,301

Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 17)    51,664 57,604

System costs     54,387 65,489

other Expenses     287,163 175,617

Total operating expenses     899,301 899,307
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9. Staff Costs     

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Staff costs include the following:    

 - Social Security costs     243 283

- Retirement benefit costs     18,328 20,395

- Salaries and wages     294,410 380,844

Total staff costs     312,981 401,522

10. Income Tax Expense

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000 
      
Current income tax     47,279 31,859

The Company’s current tax charge is computed in accordance with income tax rules applicable to life insurance 

companies.  A reconciliation of the tax charge is shown below.                                                                               
     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Profit before income tax     378,309 347,279

Tax calculated at the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2011: 30%)  113,493 104,184

Tax effect of:

- Prior year tax  under provision    (1,148)  3,320

- Difference between Company’s accounting profit and surplus   (65,066) (75,645)

transferred to shareholders from the long-term business

Income tax expense      47,279 31,859

 

11. Dividends 

In 2012, no interim dividend was paid (2011: Shs 300 million), however Shs 100 million was proposed.

12. Share Capital  

    Number of ordinary Share
    shares shares premium
    (Thousands) Shs’000 Shs’000

Balance at 1 January 2011,     30,617 612,340 - 
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 30,617,000 with a par value of Shs 20 per share. As at 31 

December 2012, all issued shares had been fully paid up. 

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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13. Other reserves 

other reserves comprise the revaluation surplus on buildings and freehold land (included within property and 

equipment) which is a non distributable reserve and the fair value reserve for available for sale investments. 

Revaluation reserve – Buildings    2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At  start of year     399,508 399,508

Revaluation gain  in the year (Note 16)    54,211 -

At end of year     453,719 399,508

Fair value reserve – available-for-sale investments

At  start of year     (48,987) 913,740

Fair value gain /(loss)  on quoted shares (Note 20(i))   138,050 (733,178)

Fair value gain /(loss) on government securities (Note 20(ii))   104,147 (297,423)

Lifevest fair value adjustment due to accounting change   17,485 -

Transfer of reserves from Heritage (Note 35)    28,412 -

Impairment loss recognised in the year (Note 6)   14,783 67,874

At end of year     253,890 (48,987)

Total - other reserves     707,609 350,521

14. Retained Earnings

The retained earnings balance represents the amount available for dividend distribution to the shareholders 

of the Company, with the exception of cumulative fair value gains on the Company’s investment properties of 

Shs 245,282,000 (2011: Shs 179,782,000) whose distribution is subject to restrictions imposed by the Insurance 

Regulatory Authority.

Movement in the retained earnings is shown below:

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year     (312,546) (88,660)

Profit  for the year     331,030 315,420

Transfer to statutory reserve     (231,028) (239,306)

Transfer of retained earnings from Heritage (Note 35)   75,333 -

Interim dividends paid     - (300,000)

Proposed dividends     (100,000) -

At  end of year     (237,211) (312,546)

FINANCIAL REPoRTSnotes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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15. Statutory Reserve

The statutory reserve represents surpluses from the life fund whose distribution is subject to restrictions imposed 

by the Kenya Insurance Act. The total of the statutory reserve and other reserves represents 70% of the surplus 

of the life fund and any undistributed surpluses available to the shareholders. The Act limits the amounts of 

surpluses of the life business available for distribution to shareholders to 30% of the accumulated profits of the 

life business.

During the year a total of Shs 100,000,000 net of taxes was available to the shareholders of which none was 

distributed to them. In 2011, Shs 300,000,000 net of taxes was available to the shareholders of which all was 

distributed to them.

movement in the statutory reserve is shown below: 

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year     318,022 78,616

Transfer of statutory reserves from Heritage (Note 35)   273,980 -

Surplus for the year     231,028 239,406

At  end of year     823,030 318,022

The total un-appropriated Surplus in the life fund is Shs 1,530,639 (2011: Shs 668,543) analysed as follows;

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Amount in statutory reserve      823,030 318,022

Amount in other reserves     707,609 350,521

At  end of year     1,530,639 668,543

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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Buildings were revalued as at 31 December 2012, by Tysons Limited, independent valuers, on the basis of the 

market value for existing use. The resultant revaluation surplus was credited to the revaluation reserve.

If the land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Cost     138,769 137,116

Addition     19,636 1,653

Accumulated depreciation     (72,482) (68,182)

Net book amount     85,923 70,587

17. Intangible Assets 

Cost At 1 January     290,896 266,538

Additions     13,308 24,358

other     601 -

At 31 December      304,805  290,896

Amortisation

At 1 January     189,961 132,357

Charge for the year (Note 8)     51,664 57,604

At 31 December     241,625    189,961

Net book amount     63,180 100,935

18. Investment Properties  

At start of year     412,500 382,500

Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    278,249 -

Transfer from owner occupied (note 16)    1,000 -

Fair value gains (Note 6)     64,500 30,000

At end of year     756,249 412,500

The property rental income earned by the Company from its investment properties, leased out under operating 

leases as at 31 December 2012, amounted to Shs 65,033,001 (2011: Shs 52,064,935). Direct operating expenses 

arising on the investment property amounted to Shs 34,678,358 (2011: Shs 37,163,024).

FINANCIAL REPoRTSnotes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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19. Government Securities held-To-Maturity

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At 1 January     5,282,643 1,838,173

Transfer from AFS     - 2,134,716
Transfer from AFS to HTm - Lien    - 139,525
Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    882,579 -
Additions     611,078 1,239,013
Redemptions     (436,360) (68,784)

Total     6,339,940 5,282,643

As at 31 December 2012 a total of Shs 799,020,212 (2011: Shs 741,150,000) of the government securities 

classified as held-to-maturity were held under lien by the Central Bank of Kenya.

Treasury bills and bonds maturity profile:

maturing within 1 year     1,229,433 474,284

In 1-5 years     2,017,271 2,322,534
In 5-10 years     1,387,692 1,539,735
In over 10 years     1,705,544 946,090

Total     6,339,940 5,282,643

20.  Available-for-Sale financial Assets 

Quoted shares     823,825 1,686,960
Government securities     2,277,619 998,157

Total     3,101,444 2,685,117

movements in available-for-sale assets during the year are as follows:  

i) Quoted shares

At start of year     1,686,960 2,879,430

Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    169,184 -
Additions     45,535 16,277
Disposals     (1,215,904) (475,569)
Fair value gain /(loss) (Note 13)    138,050 (733,178)

At end of year     823,825 1,686,960

ii) Government securities

At start of year     998,157 3,845,239

Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    277,164 -
Additions     1,997,575 4,197
Disposals      (1,099,424) (279,616)
Fair value gain/ (loss) (Note 13)    104,147 (297,423)
Transfer to HTm - Lien     - (139,524)
Transfer to HTm     - (2,134,716)

At end of year     2,277,619 998,157

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)



83CfC Life Assurance Limited • 31 December 2012

21. Mortgage Loans    

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year     200,413 144,974

Loan advanced     17,231 77,076

Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    34,058 -

Accrued interest      692 2,923

Loan repayments     (26,287) (24,560)

At end of year     226,107 200,413

22. Policy Loans

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year     673,461 601,370

Loan advanced     341,354 303,040

Surrenders      (325,324) (141,977)

Loan repayments     (73,499) (88,972)

At end of year     615,992 673,461

 

The collateral for the policy loans is the cash surrender value of the underlying policy. In case of default the loan 

is written off against the cash surrender value.

23. Re-insurers’ Share of Technical Provisions and Reserves

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Re-insurers’ share of:

- notified claims outstanding     130,506 105,660

- Impairment provision     - -

Total     130,506 105,660

Amounts due from re-insurers in respect of claims already paid by the Company on contracts that are reinsured 

are included in reinsurance receivables on the Statement of financial position.   

FINANCIAL REPoRTSnotes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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24. Other Receivables

     2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Due from related companies (Note 34 (d))    71,832 43,350

Prepayments     29,702 22,115

Deposits with medical providers    18,800 44,637

Staff loans     72,054 74,063

Assets transferred  from Heritage (Note 35)     41,439 -

other receivable     53,849 68,927

     287,676 253,092

25. Insurance Contract Liabilites

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Long term insurance contracts

 - claims reported and claims handling expenses   152,737 78,832

- insurance contract liabilities from Heritage      29,104 -

- insurance contract liabilities (Note 26)    5,171,883 4,232,653

Total long term Insurance contract liabilities     5,353,724 4,311,485

(a) Long-term insurance contracts

The Company determines its liabilities on the long-term insurance contracts using the Net Premium Valuation 

(NPV) methodology. The NPV method and assumptions are prescribed by the Insurance Act, 1997 (CAP 487), as the 

minimum valuation basis. The liabilities on the long-term insurance contracts are also determined on a realistic 

basis, namely the Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) method. The NPV method is considered to be appropriate 

because it arrives at prudent and conservative actuarial liabilities at the valuation date, emphasised by the GPV 

which provides lower liabilities than the NPV. 

The NPV method makes explicit assumptions (as prescribed by the Insurance Act) in respect of expected future 

deaths and investment returns.  The NPV basis makes implicit assumptions regarding expected experience in 

respect of lapses, expenses, bonuses and a margin for uncertainty on these assumptions. The liabilities are 

determined by the Company on the advice of the consulting actuary and actuarial valuations are carried out on 

an annual basis. The latest actuarial valuation of the Company’s life fund was undertaken as at 31 December 2012 

by the consulting actuaries – Aon South Africa (Pty) Limited. 

NoTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEmENTS (continued)
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(b) Valuation assumptions:

The significant valuation assumptions for the actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2012 are summarised below:  

(i) Mortality

The Company uses 100% of the KE 2001/2003 ultimate mortality table as per prescribed minimum basis (NPV) 

for mortality rates.  No explicit allowance is made for AIDS on the NPV basis. The GPV basis uses 100% of the 

SA85/90 ultimate mortality table plus an AIDS allowance of 100% of the AB1 Select and Ultimate tables (2008 

ASSA model).  

For Group Life contracts which is only valued as an IBNR, there is a mitigating effect of changing premium rates 

on an annual basis as contracts are reviewed annually and no mortality guarantees are offered.

(ii) Investment returns

The NPV actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2012 used a discount rate of 4% p.a. compounded annually for 

individual long term insurance contracts and 6.5% p.a. compounded annually for the annuity business.  

The same rates were used for the valuation as at 31 December 2011. 

The weighted average rate of return on a Fair Value basis as earned by the assets backing the life fund for the year 

ended 31 December 2012 was 25.59% p.a. (2011: negative 6.91% p.a.) and the average over the last three years 

was 13.37% p.a.  

The valuation interest rate assumption (on the GPV basis) allows for a margin over the expected future investment 

return, hence strengthening the prudence in the GPV valuation basis. The expected future investment return is 

12% on a GPV basis.

(iii) expenses and expense inflation

The NPV method makes no explicit assumptions on the level of expenses and expense inflation.  As at 31 December 

2012 the implied proportion of annual premiums reserved for future expenses in the NPV was 42% p.a. (2011: 

33.38% p.a.)  This is higher than the actual current level of management expenses being incurred in the life fund.

The current level of management expenses is taken to be an appropriate expense base for the GPV basis.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The NPV method is not very sensitive to changes in most of the key assumptions used in determining the actuarial 

liabilities.  For example the worsening of mortality assumption by 100% will result in an increase in actuarial 

liabilities of not more than 3%.

The Company markets long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms only.  For liabilities under 

these contracts key assumptions are unchanged for the duration of the contract.

FINANCIAL REPoRTSnotes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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26.    Movements in Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets 

(a) Long-term insurance business
       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At 1 January      4,232,653 3,726,709

Premiums received / valuation premium    1,328,435 1,204,732

Liabilities released for payments (Note 7)     (660,701) (547,848)

Change in actuarial reserves     271,496 (150,940)

At 31 December      5,171,883 4,232,653

27. Amount Payable Under Deposit Administration

Deposit administration contracts are recorded at amortised cost.  movements in amounts payable under deposit 

administration contracts during the year were as shown below. The liabilities are shown inclusive of interest 

accumulated to 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. Interest was declared and credited to the customer 

accounts at a weighted average rate of 10% for year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 3 %).

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

At 1 January     7,589,211 7,100,559

Release of overstated reserves     (92,864) -

Pension fund deposits received    1,566,223 1,576,505

Transfer from Heritage (Note 35)    1,883,013 -

Surrenders and annuities paid     (1,593,361) (1,345,265)

Interest payable to policyholders     752,054 257,412

At 31 December     10,104,276 7,589,211

28. Unearned Premiums 

This provision represents the liability for group life contracts where the Company’s obligations are not expired at 

the year end.  movement in the reserve are shown below:

  2012   2011 
 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
At beginning of year - - - 37,423 2,031 35,392

Decrease in the period (net) (45,296) - (45,296) (37,423) (2,031) (35,392)

At end of year - - (45,296) - - - 
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29. Other Payables

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Due from related companies (Note 34 (d))    65,195 11,632

Accrued expenses     92,048 96,328

Stale cheques     47,315 72,166

Reserve for maturities     233,607 281,389

other payables transferred from Heritage (Note 35)   77,700 -

other payables     58,880 49,372

     574,745 510,887

30. Contigent Liabilities & Commitments

As is common with the insurance industry in general, the Company is subject to litigation arising in the normal 

course of insurance business.  The Directors are of the opinion that this litigation will not have a material effect 

on the financial position or results of the Company.

Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:   

 

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Not later than 1 year     13,962 2,238

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    54,361 19,589

     68,323 21,827

31. Deferred Tax 

No deferred tax was recognised in the year as there were no temporary differences

32. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Cash at bank and in hand     237,864 153,208

Deposits with financial institutions    4,190,975 1,466,815

     4,428,839 1,620,023
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33. Cash Generated from Operations    

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated  from operations:

       2012 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000

Profit before tax      378,310 347,279

Adjustments for:

Interest income      (1,273,676) (868,106)

Depreciation of property & equipment (Note 16)   66,796 68,301

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17)    51,664 57,604

Loss on sale of property and equipment     17,378 -

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease rentals    11 11

Change in fair value of investment property    (64,500) (30,000)

Foreign exchange (gain) /Loss     (528) (1,184)

Dividend  received      (90,720) (101,662)

Fund management fees expenses     35,873 36,830

other net  investment income/ expenses    (125,747) 957

Realised gains on sale of AFS investments    (394,365) (101,563)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale assets    14,783 67,874

Changes in:

- technical provisions     1,015,023 381,439

- trade and other payables     617,573 252,896

- trade and other receivables     29,763 6,353

Cash generated from operations    277,638 117,029

 

34. Related Party Transactions 

The Company is controlled by Liberty Holdings Kenya (LHK) incorporated in Kenya. The ultimate parent of 

the Company is Standard Bank PLC, a Company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa. There are other 

companies which are related to CfC Life Assurance Limited through common shareholdings or common 

directorships. 
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The following transactions were carried out with related parties: 

     Total 2012  Total 2011
     Shs’000 Shs’000
(a) Investments held in related companies   

Bank deposits     886,860 -
Corporate bonds     249,951 -
Available-for-sale assets : quoted shares    11,501 1,877

     1,148,312 1,877

(b) Investment management expenses charged by related companies  

management fees     35,873 36,830
Stock brokerage fees     15,612 -
Bonds brokerage fees     271 -

     51,756 36,830

(c) Income received from related party investments   

Dividend received     175 -
Interest on deposits     137,321 -
Rental income     40,464 31,459

     177,960 31,459

(d)  outstanding balances with related parties   

(i) Receivable from
Heritage Insurance     61,386 42,466
Strategies Tanzania     - 745
Liberty Uganda     - 18
Heritage Tanzania     38 121
StanLib     10,408 -

     71,832 43,350

(ii) Payables to:   
StanLib     5,668 954
Liberty Africa     47,874 10,678
Heritage Kenya     11,653 -

     65,195 11,632

(e)  Key management compensation   

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits   129,744 163,911

     129,744 163,911

(f)  Directors’ remuneration   

 - fees for services as a director    4,353 3,555
 - other emoluments (included in (e) above)    29,408 65,485

     33,761 69,040
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35. heritage Insurance Business Transfer

During the year, Liberty Kenya Holdings Limited (LKHL) reorganized its insurance business to enable the 

respective subsidiaries align themselves to the guidelines issued by the Insurance Regulatory Authority (IRA). 

The reorganization entailed the Heritage Insurance Company (K) limited transferring its long term business to 

CfC Life assurance ltd. 

Detailed Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012

heritage Insurance Business transferred

   Notes CfC Life  Heritage Total
    only only 2012
CAPITAL EmPLoyED    Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Share capital   12 612,340 - 612,340

other reserves   13 679,197 28,412 707,609

Retained earnings   14 (312,544) 75,333 (237,211)

Statutory reserve   15 549,050 273,980 823,030

Proposed dividends   11 100,00 - 100,00

Shareholders’ funds    1,628,043 377,725 2,005,768

repreSeNteD BY:
Assets
Property and equipment   16 659,732 540 660,272
Intangible assets   17 63,180 - 63,180
Investment property   18 478,000 278,249 756,249
Financial assets:

- held-to-maturity   19 5,457,361 882,579 6,339,940
- available-for-sale:   20 2,655,096 446,348 3,101,444
Corporate bonds    1,210,673 179,944 1,390,617
mortgage loans   21 192,049 34,058 226,107
Policy loans   22 615,992 - 615,992
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements  13,997 13,386 27,383
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements   35,278 - 35,278
Prepaid lease    650 - 650
Re-insurers’ share of technical provisions and reserves 23 127,396 3,110 130,506
other receivables   24 206,025 81,651 287,676
Tax recoverable    28,719 - 28,719
Cash and cash equivalents   32 3,973,036 455,803 4,428,839

Total assets    15,717,184 2,375,668 18,092,852

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities   25 5,324,620 29,104 5,353,724
Payable under deposit administration contracts 27 8,221,263 1,883,013 10,104,276
Unearned premiums   28 45,296 - 45,296
Creditors arising from reinsurance arrangements  917 7,161 8,078
Tax payable    - 965 965
other payables   29 497,045 77,700 574,745

Total liabilities    14,089,141 1,997,943 16,087,084

Net assets    1,628,043 377,725 2,005,768
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Long Term Business Revenue Account 
For the year ended 31 December 2012

   ordinary Life  Group Life Pension Total
   Business Business Business 
            2012 2012 2012 2012
   Shs’000 Shs’000    Shs’000 Shs’000

Gross earned premiums   1,156,761 356,694 - 1,513,455
Less: reinsurance premium ceded  (31,242) (153,778) - (185,020)

Net earned premiums   1,125,519 202,916 - 1,328,435
Investment income   739,227 4,851 1,124,132 1,868,210
Commissions earned   15,188 49,338 - 64,526
other Income (including Fees)   13,292 - - 13,292

Total revenue   1,893,226 257,105 1,124,132 3,274,463

Claims   20,378 141,140 - 161,518
Surrenders, maturities  and annuity Payments  542,550 - - 542,550
Change in actuarial value of  policyholder Benefits 469,722 10,309 659,190 1,139,221
Less: amounts recoverable from  reinsurers  - (43,367) - (43,367)

Net claims and policyholder benefits payable  1,032,650 108,082 659,190 1,799,922

operating and other expenses   644,713 27,294 227,294 899,301
Commission Payable   175,367 10,095 11,469 196,931

Total  expenses   1,852,730 145,471 897,953 2,896,154

Profit before tax   40,496 111,634 226,179 378,309

Income tax expense   (29,786) (1,891) (15,602) (47,279)

Profit for the year   10,710 109,743 210,577 331,030

Long term funds at the end of the year comprise amounts attributable to:

Policyholders:    

-actuarial liabilities   5,353,724 - - 5,353,724
-deposit administration funds   - - 10,104,276 10,104,276

Shareholders:    

-statutory reserve   592,002 - - 592,002
-share capital   612,340 - - 612,340
-other reserves   (547,196) (149) (160,264) (707,609)

Total   6,010,870 (149) 9,944,012 15,954,733
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Long Term Business Revenue Account 
For the year ended 31 December 2011

   ordinary Life  Group Life Pension Total
   Business Business Business 
            2011 2011 2011 2011
   Shs’000 Shs’000    Shs’000 Shs’000

Gross earned premiums   1,127,023 205,666 - 1,332,689

Less: reinsurance premium ceded  (30,574) (97,383) - (127,957)

Net earned premiums   1,096,449 108,283 - 1,204,732

Investment income   298,019 804 706,946 1,005,769

Commissions earned   9,140 41,928 - 51,068

other Income (including Fees)   12,010 - - 12,010

Total revenue   1,415,618 151,015 706,946 2,273,579

Claims   23,519 15,126 - 38,645

Surrenders, maturities  and annuity Payments  507,468 - - 507,468

Change in actuarial value of policyholder   80,603 - 257,412 338,015 
Benefits

Less: amounts recoverable from  reinsurers  2,622 (887) - 1,735

Net claims and policyholder benefits payable  614,212 14,239 257,412 885,863

operating and other expenses   414,007 52,399 113,692 580,098

Commission Payable   185,937 9,223 10,600 205,760

Total  expenses   1,214,156 75,861 381,704 1,671,721

Profit before tax   201,462 75,154 325,242 601,858

Income tax expense   (22,921) (22,546) (44,533) (90,000)

Profit for the year   178,541 52,608 280,709 511,858

Long term funds at the end of the year comprise amounts attributable to:

Policyholders:    

-actuarial liabilities   4,232,653 - - 4,232,653

-deposit administration funds   - - 7,589,211 7,589,211

Shareholders:    

-statutory reserve   318,022 - - 318,022

-share capital   152,340 - - 152,340

-other reserves   (262,804) - (87,717) (350,521)

Total   4,440,211 - 7,501,494 11,941,705
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Short term business revenue account 
For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 comparative 

 Personal Group  Personal Group
 accident medical  accident medical
 Business Business Total Business Business  Total
 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Gross earned premiums - - - 17,565 40,452 58,017

Less: reinsurance premium ceded - - - (387) - (387)

Net earned premiums - - - 17,178 40,452 57,630

Investment income - - - 4,160 5,411 9,571

Commissions earned - - - 126 - 126

other Income (including Fees) - - - - 1,927 1,927

Total revenue - - - 21,464 47,790 69,254

Claims - - - 2,088 34,686 36,774

Surrenders and annuity Payments - - - - - -

Policy holder bonuses and Interest - - - - - -

Change in actuarial value of - - - - - - 
policyholder Benefits

Less: amounts recoverable from - - - (1,625) (34,704) (36,329) 
reinsurers

Net claims and policyholder - - - 463 (18) 445 
benefits payable

operating and other expenses - - - 141,931 177,278 319,209

Commission Payable - - - 3,641 538 4,179

Total expenses - - - 146,035 177,798 323,833

Loss before tax - - - (124,571) (130,008) (254,579) 

Income tax credit - - - 30,072 28,069 58,141

Loss for the year - - - (94,499) (101,939) (196,438)
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CfC house, Mamlaka Rd.

P.o Box 30364 Nairobi, Kenya

t: 254 20 286 6 000

f: 250 20 271 8 365

e: cfclife@cfclife.co.ke

w: www.cfclife-kenya.com


